I have read a book. – Elolvastam egy könyvet.
I will have read a book. – Addigra el fogok olvasni egy könyvet.
I would have read a book. – Elolvastam volna egy könyvet

I should have read a book. – El kellett volna olvasnom egy könyvet.
Should I have read a book? – El kellett volna olvasnom egy könyvet?
a book = what
What should I have read? – Mit kellett volna elolvasnom?
…what I should have read… - …amit el kellett volna olvasnom… …hogy mit kellett volna elolvasnom…
I know what I should have read. – Tudom, hogy mit kellett volna elolvasnom.
She (does know) knows what I should have read. – Ő tudja, hogy mit kellett volna elolvasnom.

She is standing at the door. – Ő éppen ott áll az ajtónál.
Is she standing at the door?
at the door = where
Where is she standing?
she = who
Who is standing at the door?
…who is standing at the door…

She (does know) knows what I should have read. – Ő tudja, hogy mit kellett volna elolvasnom.
[Who is standing at the door] (does know) knows what I should have read. – Aki az ajtónál áll, (az) tudja, hogy mit kellett volna elolvasnom.
Does she know…
Does who is standing at the door know what I should have read? – Aki az ajtónál áll, (az) tudja, hogy mit kellett volna elolvasnom?


I was here yesterday.
Yesterday, I was here.

I like apple, pear and grapes.

My friends who live in London are here. – (Azok) a barátaim, akik Londonban élnek, itt vannak.
My parents, who live in London, are here. – A szüleim, akik Londonban élnek, itt vannak.


Peti should get home at 9. – Petinek 9-re haza kellene érnie.
Should Peti get home at 9?
at 9 = when
When should Peti get home?
…when Peti should get home…
I don’t care when Peti should get home.

Peti should have got home at 9. – Petinek haza kellett volna érnie 9-re.
Peti could have got home at 9. – Peti haza tudott volna érni 9-re.

Peti has got home. – Peti hazaért (mostanra).
Peti hasn’t got home. – Peti nem ért haza (mostanáig).

Peti could have got home at 9 but he hasn’t.


He is here. – Is he here?
He should be here. – Should he be here?
He should have got home. – Should he have got home?
Peti should get home at 9. – Should Peti get home at 9?
at 9 = when


is – isn’t 
should – shouldn’t 
will – won’t 
shall – shan’t


I shall open the door. – Nyissam ki az ajtót.
Shall I?


Peti might have got home at 9. – Peti lehet, hogy hazaért 9-re.
Might Peti have got home at 9? – Lehet, hogy Peti hazaért 9-re.

Peti must have got home at 9. – Peti biztos, hogy hazaért 9-re.
Peti mustn’t have got home at 9. – Peti biztos, hogy nem ért haza 9-re.


I (do) need to get home at 9. – Szükség van arra, hogy hazaérjek 9-re. (Haza kell érnem 9-re.)
I don’t need to get home at 9. – Nincs szükség arra, hogy hazaérjek 9-re.
I didn’t need to get home at 9. – Nem volt szükség arra, hogy hazaérjek 9-re.

I needn’t get home at 9. – Szükségtelen hazaérnem 9-re.
I needn’t have got home at 9. – Szükségtelen lett volna hazaérnem 9-re.
Needn’t I have got home at 9? – Szükségtelen lett volna hazaérnem 9-re? (Nem kellett volna hazaérnem 9-re?)

study – tanul(gat) / learn (megtanul; megért)


We are learning English.
Are we learning English?
English = what
What are we learning?
…what we are learning…
…the thing that we are learning…

We have learnt it.
Have we learnt it?
it = what
What have we learnt?
…what we have learnt…
We are using it.
We are using what we have learnt.
We were using what we had learnt.

Peti is using what he has learnt.
Peti is using the words that he has learnt.
Peti was using the words that he had learnt.
…that Peti was using the words that he had learnt…
I (do) know…
I (did know) knew that Peti was using the words that he had learnt.
…that I knew that Peti was using the words that he had learnt…
The problem was that I knew that Peti was using the words that he had learnt. – A probléma (az) volt, hogy tudtam, hogy Peti éppen használja azokat a szavakat, amelyeket megtanult.
…who is standing at the door… - …aki az ajtónál áll…
…who was standing at the door… - …aki az ajtónál állt…
…the teacher who was standing at the door… - …a tanár, aki az ajtónál állt…
I (did know) knew… - Én tudtam…
She (did know) knew… - Ő tudta…
The teacher who was standing at the door knew… - A tanár, aki az ajtónál állt, tudta…
The problem was that she knew that Peti was using the words that he had learnt. – A probléma (az) volt, hogy tudta, hogy Peti éppen használja azokat a szavakat, amelyeket megtanult.
The problem was that the teacher who was standing at the door knew that Peti was using the words that he had learnt. - A probléma (az) volt, hogy tudta, hogy Peti éppen használja azokat a szavakat, amelyeket megtanult.

I have worked here. – Itt dolgoztam. / Már dolgoztam itt.

I have worked. – Na, dolgoztam egyet.

I am working. – Éppen dolgozom.
I have been working. – Éppen mostanáig dologztam.
I (do) work. – Nosza, dolgozom (egyet).
I have worked. – Nosza, dolgoztam (egyet, mostanra).


I have worked, I have gone to the store, I have bought a glass of vodka, I have walked the dog. I am very tired. – Már dolgoztam, már 

skyrocket - pocket


I have finished working.



I (do) paint the wall.
I have painted the wall.

I (do) have a dog.
I have had a dog.
I had had a dog before I met you.


I have sent a text.
Have I sent a text?
a text = what
a text = what kind of text
What kind of text have I sent?

I have sent…
I would have sent a text.
Would I have sent a text?
What kind of text would I have sent?
…what kind of text I would have sent…

Would I have sent a text?
a text = what
What would I have sent?
…what I would have sent…
…the text that I would have sent…

You have read it.
You could have read it.
You could have read the text that I would have sent.
You couldn’t have read the text that I would have sent.
…that you could have read the text that I would have sent… - …hogy te el tudtad volna olvasni az sms-t, amit küldtem volna…
…if you could have read the text that I would have sent… - …hogy te el tudtad volna-e olvasni az sms-t, amit küldtem volna…
I am sure. – Biztos vagyok (benne).
I am not sure if you could have read the text that I would have sent. – 
Nem vagyok biztos (benne), hogy el tudtad volna olvasni az sms-t, amit küldtem volna.


You are here.
You will be here.
…that you will be here…
I (do) know that you will be here. – Tudom, hogy itt leszel.
I (did know) knew that you would be here. – Tudtam, hogy itt leszel.

REPORTED SPEECH – Közvetített beszéd
You (do) say that you will be here. – Azt mondod, hogy itt leszel.
You (did say) said that you would be here. – Azt mondtad, hogy itt leszel.
“I will be here.”


I am thinking about what would be. – Azon gonldolkodom, hogy mi lenne.
I was thinking about what would have been. – Azon gondolkodtam, hogy mi lenne. Azon gondokodtam, hogy mi lett volna.


I am thinking about what could have been. – Azon gondolkodom, hogy mi lehetett volna.
I was thinking about what could have been. – Azon gondolkodtam, hogy mi lett volna.


You (do) arrive at 9. – Te 9-kor érkezel.
Do you arrive at 9? – Te 9-kor érkezel?
at 9 = when
When do you arrive? – Mikor érkezel?
…when you arrive… - …amikor érkezel…
I will go home when you arrive. – Haza fogok menni, amikor megérkezel.
when – amikor / if - ha
I will go home if you (do) arrive. – Haza fogok menni, ha te megérkezel.
I would go home if you (did arrive) arrived. – Hazamennék, ha te megérkeznél.
I would have gone home if you had arrived. – Hazamentem volna, ha te megérkeztél volna.

You could have read the text if I had sent it. – El tudtad volna olvasni az sms-t, ha elküldtem volna.


She is talking about it. – Ő éppen erről/arról beszél.
Is she talking about it? – Ő éppen erről beszél?
it = what
What is she talking about? – Miről beszél ő (éppen)? 
[about it = about what
About what is she talking? – Vajh miről beszél őkelme?]
…what she is talking about… - …amiről ő beszél (éppen)… …hogy miről beszél ő (éppen)…
I don’t understand what she is talking about. – Nem értem, hogy miről beszél ő éppen.

…that she is talking about… - …hogy ő beszél …ről…
…what she is talking about… - …hogy ő miről beszél…

…what she is eating… - …amit ő eszik… …hogy ő mit eszik…
…that she is eating… - …hogy ő eszik…


I am 50.
…that I am 50…
You (do) think that I am 50.
Do you think that I am 50?
50 = how old
How old do you think (that) I am? – Mit gondolsz, (hogy) hány éves vagyok? Szerinted hány éves vagyok? 

How tall do you think that this house is? – Mit gondolsz, milyen magas ez a ház?


Szerinted hány éves vagyok?






Do you arrive at 9?
Are you arriving at 9?
Are you going to arrive at 9?
Are you to arrive at 9?
Will you arrive at 9?
Will you be arriving at 9?
Will you be going to arrive at 9?
Will you be to arrive at 9?

INVERZIÓ

A table is.
A table is there.
There is a table.

There is a problem.

You could have read the text if I had sent it. – El tudtad volna olvasni az sms-t, ha elküldtem volna.

You could have read the text. – Te el tudtad volna olvasni az sms-t.
…if you could have read the text… - …ha te el tudtad volna olvasni az sms-t…

There is a problem. – Van egy probléma.
There would be a problem. – Lenne egy probléma.
There would have been a problem. – Lett volna egy probléma.

There wouldn’t be a problem. – Nem lenne probléma.
There wouldn’t have been a problem. – Nem lett volna probléma.

There wouldn’t have been a problem if you could have read the text. – Nem lett volna probléma, ha el tudtad volna olvasni az sms-t.

If you could have read the text, there wouldn’t have been a problem.

Wouldn’t there have been a problem if you could have read the text? - Nem lett volna probléma, ha el tudtad volna olvasni az sms-t?
If you could have read the text, wouldn’t there have been a problem?


Kati, who is my sister, who lives in London and who isn’t a doctor, is going to buy three pairs of pink high heels. – Kati, aki a húgom, aki Londonban él és aki nem orvos, (éppen) venni fog három pár rózsaszín magassarkút.

Kati, who is my sister, lives in London and isn’t a doctor, 

Kati is going to buy three pairs of high heels.
Is Kati going to buy three pairs of high heels?
three pairs of high heels = how many pairs of high heels
How many pairs of high heels is Kati going to buy?
…how many pairs of high heels Kati is going to buy…
I (do) have no idea how many pairs of high heels Kati is going to buy. – Fogalmam sincs, hogy Kati hány pár magassarkút fog venni.
I (did have) had no idea how many pairs of high heels Kati was going to buy. – Fogalmam sem volt, hogy Kati hány pár magassarkút fog venni.

We must go on a vacation. – Biztosan elmegyünk szabadságra. / Muszáj elmennünk szabadságra.
Must we go on a vacation?
on a vacation = where
Where must we go?
…where we must go… - …ahova muszáj mennünk… …hogy hová muszáj mennünk…
…the place where we must go… - …a hely, ahová muszáj mennünk…
We don’t know the place where we must go. – Nem ismerjük a helyet, ahová muszáj mennünk.
…that we don’t know the place where we must go… - …hogy nem ismerjük a helyet, ahová muszáj mennünk…
There is a problem.
The problem is that…
The problem will be that…
The problem will be if we don’t know the place where we must go. – A probléma az lesz, ha nem ismerjük a helyet, ahova mennünk kell / muszáj mennünk.




where = hol/hová


go on – menni rá/tovább / folytatni
go on a vacation 


Where to?
Where are you? – Hol vagy?
Where are you at? – Hol vagy?






Kati was going to buy three pairs high heels.

I am going to call you. – (Úgy van, hogy) hívni foglak.
I was going to call you. – Úgy volt, hogy hívni foglak.


I am reading a good book in my brother’s room. – Éppen egy jó könyvet olvasok a bátyám szobájában.
Am I reading a good book in my brother’s room?
a good book = what
What am I reading in my brother’s room?
…what I am reading in my brother’s room…
a good book = what kind of book
What kind of book am I reading in my brother’s room?
…what kind of book I am reading in my brother’s room…
in my brother’s room = where
Where am I reading a good book?
…where I am reading a good book…
in my brother’s room = in whose room
In whose room am I reading a good book?
…in whose room I am reading a good book…
I = who
Who is reading a good book in my brother’s room?
…who is reading a good book in my brother’s room…
reading = doing what
What am I doing in my brother’s room?
…what I am doing in my brother’s room…
What am I doing with a good book in my brother’s room?
…what I am doing with a good book in my brother’s room…
Why am I reading a good book in my brother’s room?
…why I am reading a good book in my brother’s room…

…that I am reading a good book in my brother’s room…
…if I am reading a good book in my brother’s room…



The Sun is shining. – (Most éppen) süt a Nap.
The Sun has been shining. – Idáig sütött a Nap.
Has the Sun been shining? – Idáig sütött a Nap?
the Sun = What
What has been shining? – Mi ragyogott idáig?
shining = doing what
What has the Sun been doing? – Mit csinált idáig a Nap?
…what the Sun has been doing… - …amit a Nap idáig csinált… …hogy mit csinált idáig a Nap…
I don’t know what the Sun has been doing. – Nem tudom, hogy mit csinált idáig a Nap.
I didn’t know what the Sun had been doing. – Nem tudtam, hogy mit csinált a Nap odáig.
…that I didn’t know what the Sun had been doing… - …hogy nem tudtam, hogy mit csinált odáig a Nap…
…the fact that I didn’t know what the Sun had been doing… - …a tény, hogy nem tudtam, hogy mit csinált odáig a Nap…
It is cold. – Hideg van.
…that it is cold… - …hogy hideg van…
…that it was cold… - …hogy hideg volt…
That (does mean) means that it was cold.
The fact 
that I didn’t know 
what the Sun had been doing 
means 
that it was cold. 
– A(z a) tény, hogy nem tudtam, hogy a Nap mit csinált előtte, azt jelenti, hogy hideg volt.



I am a doctor.
I have been a doctor.

The Sun is shining. 
The Sun has been shining.


GERUND - -ás/-és végű főnév

swimming – úszás
eating – evés
drinking – ivás
going – menés
driving – vezetés

I read a book in my brother’s room. – Elolvasok egy könyvet a bátyám szobájában.
reading a book in my brother’s room – egy könyv elolvasása a bátyám szobájában / egy könyvet elolvasni a bátyám szobájában

I (do) like dancing. – Szeretek táncolni./Szeretem a táncolást.
I (do) like to dance. – Szeretek táncolni.

I like to smoke. – Szeretek cigizni.
I like smoking. – Szeretek cigizni.


I like swimming. – Szeretem az úszást.
I like to swim. – Szeretek úszni.


I like…
I love…
I know…
I want…

I am liking.
I am loving.
I am knowing.
I am wanting.

Are you knowing what you are wanting? – Most éppen tudjátok, hogy most éppen mit akartok?

I see.
I hear.
I feel.

I am seeing.
I am hearing.
I am feeling.

I can see.
I can hear.
I can smell.
I can feel.


see – lát
look – (meg)lát, (oda)néz
watch – (meg)néz, les, figyel

watcher – őrszem
looker – nézelődő
seer – látó 

hear – hall
listen – figyel, hallgat

--

I am having a car. – Épp most van nálam egy autó.
I am having a bad day. – Most éppen rossz napom van.
I am having the kids. – Most nálam vannak a gyerekek.
I am having a party. – Most éppen bulit tartok.
I am having breakfast. – Éppen most reggelizem.



take a chair – székezni, leülni
have a chair
take a shower – venni egy zuhanyt
have a shower
Have a go. – (Menj egyet.) Próbáld ki!
have a seat
take a seat 

--

I have said something.
I might have said something. – Lehet, hogy mondtam valamit.
Might I have said something?
something = what
What might I have said?
…what I might have said…
…something that I might have said…
Is it something that I might have said?

It must be something that I might have said. – Ez biztosan valami, amit esetleg mondtam.



You (do) have to say something about it. – Neked mondanod kell erről valamit.
Do you have to say something about it?
something = what
What do you have to say about it? – Mit kell neked erről mondanod?
…what you (do) have to say about it… - …amit neked erről mondanod kell… …hogy neked mit kell erről mondanod…
I can’t imagine what you (do) have to say about it.

I am talking about it.
I have been talking about it.
Have I been talking about it?
it = what
What have I been talking about?
…what I have been talking about…
I can’t imagine what you (do) have to say about it.
I 
can’t imagine 
what you (do) have to say about 
what I have been talking about.
I couldn’t imagine what you (did have) had to say about what I had been talking about.
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